PLATINUM.

To,
The Shareholders
Platinum Industries Private Limited

AGM NOTICE

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 2"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
PLATINUM INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON FRIDAY 30™ SEPTEMBER, 2021 AT UNIT
NO. 841, 4TH FLOOR, SOLITAIRE CORPORATE PARK-8 ANDHERI KURLA ROAD, ANDHERI (E),
MUMBAI CITY MH 400093 IN AT 11:00 A.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 315 March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this
meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted”

2. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and, if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139 and other applicable provision, if any
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the underlying rules viz. Companies (Audit and auditors)
Rules, 2014 as may be applicable M/s. AMS & CO., Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No.:
130878W), be and is hereby appointed as statutory auditors of the company to hold office from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the AGM of the company
to be held in the year 2027 subject to ratification of the appointment at every AGM at a
remuneration (including term of payment) to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
company, plus GST and such other tax(es), as may be applicable & reimbursement of all out-of-
pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the accounts of the company.”

FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT any of the Board of Directors, be and is, hereby empowered and
authorized to take such steps, in relation to the above and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this
resolution and to file necessary E Forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”
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By Order of the Board
For PLATINU STRIES PRIVATE LIMITED

PARUL KRISH
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07546822

Date: 05.09.2022
Place: Mumbai



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “meeting”) is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the
proxy need not be a member of the company. The instrument appointing the proxy should,
however, be deposited at Registered Office of the Company.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorized Representatives to attend the
meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) are requested to send a
certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4., In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in
the order of names as per the Register of members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

5. Proxy, in prescribed Form No. MGT-11 is enclosed herewith. The Proxy shall not have a
right to speak at the meeting and shall not be entitled to vote, except on a poll.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by
the members at the Registered Office on all working days during business hours up to the date
of the Meeting.




"PLATINTUMI.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members of,
PLATINUM INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED

\’ouf Director’s are pleased to present the Annual Report of your Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditor’s Report of your company for the financial year
ended 31*March 2022. The summarized financial results for the year under review are asunder:

www.platinumindustries.in

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars FY ended 2021-22 FY ended 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 1,84,34,75,880 70,91,92,412
Net Profit/(Loss)Before Tax 21,86,10,929 5,29,53,531
Provision for Taxes:
Current Tax 5,95,58,457 1,44,49,973
Deferred Tax -5,45,652 1,95,523
EProﬁt (Loss) After Tax 15,95,98,125 3,83,08,035
RESERVES

The Company has transferred profit of Rs. 15,95,98,125/- to Reserves during the year under review.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the business activities of the Company for the period under review.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material orders passed which have been passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals which has impacted the going concern status and company’s operations in
future

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/[OINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

As on the date of Balance Sheet, the Company has 1 (One) subsidiary that is Platinum Global
Additives Private Limited.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE:

The company has not entered into any joint venture.

DEPOSITS:
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4 4 A I .
During the fiancial year 20210 the Company has notaccepted any amount falling within the

meaning of deposits, i terms of provisions of Chapter Ve section /3 (2) of the Companies Act 20174
read alomg with Rule 2 (1) (¢) Companies (Acceptance of Deposity) Rules 2014

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s DY R Associates o, Chartered Accountants (Firm Rep, Nos 14 1274W), Chartered Accountants,
an Auditors tirm was appointed as Statutory auditors of the company to hold office till the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for appointment. They have
confirmed their eligibility to the effect that thelr appointment, if made, would be within the
preseribed limits under the Actand they are not disqualified for appointment in accordance with
the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITOR'S REPORT;

The Auditor’s Report to the members on the accounts of the company for the financial year ended
31 March, 2022 does not contains any disqualifications, reservations and adverse remark.

:‘"“sr ;\!Pl]\!l "

The lIssued, Subscribed and Paid-up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2022 was Rs.
1,05,30,000/-.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,

The activities of the Company do not need significant energy consumption. Technical knowhow
required for the business has been developed by the Directors and are continually up -grading
the same. The Company did not have any foreign exchange carnings and outgo during the year
under review.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL(KMP):

There is no change in Director and KMP's during the year.

During the year under review, ‘11" Board Meetings were convened and held on:

Sr.No ‘ Dates

1 | 14.05.2021
| 15.05.2021

26092000

04102021
[ 21.10.2021

25.10.2021

25.11.2021

1 30.11.2021

01.02.2022

09.03.2022

15.03.2022

| 26.03.2022

t

}

IO X0 NS wire

— |
N = O

|
|
|
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PLATINUMI.

Unit No. iLdi A
0. 841, Building No. 8, Solitaire Corporate Park, Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093, INgha—

The intervening gap betweenany two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies
Act, 2013
POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S AL’l’,Q!N'[DLiNIJ\_MlM;_lLNEB_/\_l'lQ_N;

There was no Director who got reappointed or retired during the year under review.

INTERNAL C

The company has in place adequate systems of Internal Control to ensure compliance with policies

and procedures.

www.platinumindustries.in

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has taken Loans in compliance under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during
the year under review. The Company has not given or taken Guarantees or investments under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended 31st March,

2022 were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The company has paid managerial remuneration to any of the Director of the company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

There is no employee in the Company covered under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

During the year, the company has constituted the CSR Committee and framed CSR Policy. The
company has spent Rs. 10,90,000/- in CSR activities and given donation at OMKAR ANDH-APANG

SAMAJIK SANSTHA , MUMBAL

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and rules made there under, the Company has adopted a Sexual
Harassment Policy for women to ensure healthy working environment without fear of prejudice,

gender bias and sexual harassment.

The Board states that there were no cases or complaints filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial

Corporate Office
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statements to comply inall material respects with the accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 20 13, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules

2014. The financial statements have been prepared onan accrual basis and there are no material

departures from prescribed accounting standards in the adoption of these standards.
pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, the directors confirm that:

e In preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

« The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period.

e The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

e The Annual Accounts have been prepared ongoing concern basis.

e The directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are
operating effectively.

e The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the banks, Government authorities, Donors and members during the year under
review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the
committed services by the Company’s executives, staff and workers.

PARUL KRISHNA R
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07546822

DATE: 05.09.2022
PLACE: MUMBAI
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B FORM NO. MGT 9
— EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
’ as on financial year ended on 31.03.2022

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U24299MH2020PTC341637

Registration Date

09-07-2020

Name of the Company

PLATINUM INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED

 —
& v Category/Sub-category of the Company Indian Non-Government Company
1
Unit No. 841, Building No. 8, Solitaire Corporate Park, Chakala,
| Address of the Registered offi
‘ v FESHOLINEREERISIECOINES Andheri East, Mumbai-400093. Email Id:
& contact details . ) . _
krishnarana@platinumindustries.in
Vi Whether listed company NO
Name , Address & contact details of the
vii Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Not Applicable ]
I PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated
SLNo Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 MANUFACTURE OF CHEMICAL PRODUCTS 998842 100%
2
3
4
1] PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SINo Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE % OF APPLICABLE
SHARES HELD|SECTION
1 Platinum Global Additives Private Limited U24304MH2020PTC340144 Subsidiary 99.95% N/A
2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A




\% SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capltal Break up as % to total Equity)

No. of Sh:ves held at the beginning of the year No. of Shimrus |N!|Jl;|‘|T|L' end of lﬁc y;cm % chn?\quuvlng the
year

T Demat ;h\;slcnl Total % of Total “Demat Bi\vi?cnl Total | % of Total
| Shares Shares

a) Individual/HUF 10,00,000 10,00,000 94.99% - 10,00,000{ 10,00,000|  94.99%

[
|b) Central Govt.or
|

| State Govt

lﬂodws Corporates
|d) Bank/FI - s R
|e) Any other - - - - - R R

e R

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) . 10,00,000{ 10,00,000 94.99% - 10,00,000{10,00,000{  94.99%

|{2) Foreign
|3) NRI- Individuals - ) i . B . _
[b) Other Individuals - : - A . . _
|c) Bodies Corp. ) - . I . R R
|d) Banks/FI E - - g : B B . _ ,
le) Any other... : ) B J . . N

|
|SUB TOTAL (A) (2)
[

Fl’otal Shareholding of
Promoter
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) - 10,00,000|10,00,000 94.99% |- 10,00,000(10,00,000 94.99% |- -

8. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - -
b) Banks/Fl - - F - =
C) Cenntral govt - - -
d) State Govt. - -
e) Venture Capital Fund - - -
f) Insurance Companies - -
g) FIIS - - - :
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds - -
i) Others (specify) - . -

SUB TOTAL (B)(1): : : :

(2) Non Institutions - -
a) Bodies corporates - -
i) Indian -
i) Overseas
b) Individuals -

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share

capital upto Rs.1 lakhs - 52645 52645 5.01%|- 52645 52645 5.01%|- -

i) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1

lakhs - - - - - - - -
¢) Others (specify) -
Al

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): - 52645 52645 5.01%|- 52645 52645 5.01%|-

pUB T A e
—

Total Public Shareholding

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) - 52645| 52645 5.01%|- 52645 52645 5.01%|- -

C. Shares held by Custodian
for
GDRs & ADRs

[Grand Total (A+B+C) [- 10,52,64510,52,645 100% - 10,52,645|10,52,645 100% 0




S

GNARE NOUDING OF PROAOTERY

Tanarehakten Name

Shareholding at the
beglnning of the year

Shareholding at the
ond of the year

a %T:h:ue In

share holding
during the year

+ NO of shates [N ot total shares % of shares pledged NO of shares % of total sharos % of ;iTun_s pledged
‘ of the company encumbered to total of the company encumbered to total
‘ shares shares
I } - R -
: FARLL ARIHNA RANA | 299000 04 989% 999900 94.989% NIL
2 AHAVNAR =
| RRAVNA RANWL MEHTA 100 00005%| E I . N X 1) I m
|Tota 1000000 94.99% 1000000 94.99%
) CNANGE IN PROMOTERS SHARENOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE 1S NO CHANGE)
B — . _|Share holding at the beginning of the| Cumulative Share holding during the year
No. of Shares W\' of total shares of |No of shares % of total shares of
the company the company
TPARULARISENARANA 999900 “oaoso%| 999900 92.989%
| BHAVNARAHUL MEHTA T o 0.0095% 100 0.0095%
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share h:l:iu\{ ' i T
dunng the year specitying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e g allotment/transter /bonus/sweat i i NA NA
L egquity etc) B
PARUL KRISHNA RANA 999900 93.989% 999900 94.989%
RHAVNA RAHUL MEHTA 100 0.0095% 100 0.0095%
- At the eﬂie‘ the year
(w Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
SLNo Shareholding at the end of the year | C lative Shareholding during the year
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares | % of total shares of No of shares 9% of total shares of
the company the company
At the beginning of the year 52,645 5.01% 52,645 5.01%
ate wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding ‘
Guring the year specifying the reasons for Issue of Sweat |lssue of Sweat Equity| Issue of Sweat Equity Issut? of Sweat
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat Equity Shares Shares Shares Equity Shares
equity etc)
[At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, if 1%
|separatec during the vear) 52,645 5.01% 52,645 5.0
v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
SI.No | S holding at the end of the year | Cumul holding during the year
| For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares | % of total shares of No of shares 9% of total shares of
the company the company
| At the beginning of the year
|PARUL KRISHNA RANA 999900 94.98% 999900 94.98%
|BHAVNA RAHUL MEHTA 100 0.0094% 100 0.0094%
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for
|increase/decrease (e.§ allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
| equity etc)
—
At the end of the year
PARUL KRISHNA RANA 999900 94.98% 999900 94.98%
BHAVNA RAHUL MEHTA 100 0.0094% 100 0.0094%




V. INDERTEDNESS

“;a;blmnou of the Company Inc ad

Ing Interost outstanding/accrued but not due for g

payment
Secured Loans Unsecured
Loans

excluding deposits

t the beglnning of the financial year

’ln\ichmcu 2

l\ principal Amount

[ Interest due but not paid_ .
Ji) Interest accrued but not due R

‘ I )

‘qual (1elleli)

| N S
|Change in Indebtedness duringﬁ'Lﬂnanclal year
Additions

83,6561800 |  2,42,85,830.00

83,65518 00 2,42,85,830.00

Deposits

3,26,51,448.00

315,62,778.00 | 13,82,42,191.00

20,98,04,969.00

LRcduchon

hange

jete
t

7,15,62,778.00 | 13,82,42,191.00

20,98,04,969.00

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount

[ii) Interest due but not paid

7,99,28,396.00

16,25,28,021.00

24,24,56,417.00

[iii) Interest accrued but not due
=T

| Total (i+ii+iii)

7,99,28,396.00

16,25,28,021.00

24,24,56,417.00

Vi

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time dir

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ector and/or Manager:

SI.No

Particulars of

l

Total Amount

Name of the MD/WTD/

Gross salary

[T ]

(2) Salary as per provisions contained in section

|

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of

Stock option

e ——

u

Sweat Equity

| L1

1

Blw|n

Commission

as % of profit

|

others (specify)

|

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

L

Remuneration to other directors:

SI.No Particulars of R ti

Name of the Directors

Total Amount

Non- Independent Directors

Parul Rana

(a) Gross Salary

72,00,000.00

Bhavna Mehta

(b) Fee for attending board committee meetings

72,00,000.00

(c) Commission

[

(d ) Others, please specify

Director Remuneration

Director Remuneration

Total (1)

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending

(b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify.

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Cieling as per the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERI

AL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD N.A.

Particulars of Remuneration

|

Key M

ial Personnel

Gross Salary

-
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

Company
Secretary

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income

CEO \
|
|

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
Stock Option

—

| 1 |

-

Sweat Equity
Commission
as % of profit

1 |

-
-
B
I-
|

others, specify

Others, please specify

I

Total




Vil

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES  N.A.

Type section of the |Brief Description  |Details of Authority Appeall made
Companies Act Penalty/Punish |(RD/NCLT/Co |if any (give

ment/Compoun |urt) details)
ding fees
imposed

A. COMPANY

1Pena$ty

|Punishment

—_—

|Compounding

[
|

B. DIRECTORS

‘lPenalty

[Punishment

Compounding

DEFAULT

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN

Penzlty

Punishment

Compounding

Date: 05.09.2022
Place: MUMBAI

&

PARUL KRISHNA RAN
DIRECTOR
DIN : 07546822
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Platinum Industries Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Platinum Industries Private Limited (‘the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the statement of Profit and
Loss, statement of cash flows and for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

&

€ off. No. C-001, Ground Floor,
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

G



2. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

3. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

B



4, We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

:

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

d)

e)

9)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate report in
“Annexure B" -

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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There was no pending litigation which would impact the financial position of the
Company.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (‘Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(g), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

Since The Company has not declared / paid any dividend during the year, Section 123
of the Act is not applicable.”
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3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, being a private
limited company provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to
the company.

For D Y & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 141274W

Oy unds-

Devendra Jain

Partner

Mem. No. : 159228

UDIN: 22159228AYTMGT4804

Date: 05 September 2022
Place: Mumbai



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Report of even date on the accounts of Platinum Industries Private Limited for the year ended 31st
March 2022.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i) Inrespect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not hold any Intangible Asset and hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.

b. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment
so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

c. Since the Company does not hold any Immovable Property, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

d. Since the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act; 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at

reasonable intervals. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared
to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
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(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate from bank on the basis of security of current assets.

As mentioned in Note 7A to the financial statements of the Company, the following is the
summary of the differences between Current Assets declared with the Bank of Maharashtra
and as per Audited financial statements as at 31.03.2022:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Asg;::mlt s por Ba;::: Difference
Inventory 1,548.90 1,407.51 141.40
Trade Receivable 4582.78 4,244.02 338.76
Trade Payable 2,187.95 1,809.34 378.61

(i) The Company has made investments in a Subsidiary Company and granted unsecured loans
to a Subsidiary Company, in respect of which:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Company has provided unsecured loans to its Subsidiary Company amounting to
Rs. 44.75 lakhs and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date was Rs. 44.82
lakhs. The Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year.

In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, no repayment schedule has been
stipulated for repayment of principal and interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to seftie the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

The company has granted unsecured loans repayable on demand to its Subsidiary
Company amounting to Rs. 44.75 lakhs and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date was Rs. 44.82 lakhs which are 100% to the total loans granted.
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(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(€) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(xi)

(i)

(xiif)

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received
any whistle blower Complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
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(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(i)

(xiii)

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received
any whistle blower Complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xwvii)

(xviil)

(xix)

party fransactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies
Act 2013.

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due. 8
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(xx) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For DY & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 141274W

Devendra Jain

Partner

Mem. No. : 159228

UDIN: 22159228AYTMGT4804

Date: 05 September 2022
Place: Mumbai



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Platinum Industries Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Platinum Industries Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intenal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that We comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such interal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForD Y & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 141274W

Partner
Mem. No. : 159228
UDIN: 22159228AYTMGT4804

Date: 05 September 2022
Place: Mumbai



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2 105.26 105.26
Reserves and Surplus 3 1,979.06 383.08
2,084.33 488.34
Non-current liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings 4 1,675.08 110.30
Deffered Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 12.54 18.00
Long-Term Provisions 6 32.10 -
1,719.72 128.30
Current liabilities
Shori-Term Borrowings 7 749.49 216.21
Trade Payables 8
i) Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises 156.55 -
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises 2,682.77 1,980.93
Other Current Liabilities 9 280.78 69.03
Short-Term Provisions 10 432,02 183.35
4,301.61 2,449.52
Total 8,105.65 3,066.17
Il. ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property Plant Equipment & Intangible Assets
- Tangible Assets 1 465.76 384.96
- Capital Work-in-Progress - 1.78
465.76 386.74
Non-Current Investments ) 12 2.00 -
Long-Term Loans and Advances 13 84.83 55.62
86.82 55.62
Current assets
Inventories 14 1,548.90 597.78
Trade Receivables 15 4582.78 1671.21
Cash & Bank balances 16 420,64 120.78
Short-Term Loans and Advances 17 862.83 193.57
Other Current Assets 18 137.91 4047
7,553.07 2,623.81
Total 8,105.65 3,066.17
Significant Accouting Policies 1
Accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of 21041
financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For D. Y. & Associates Platinum Industries Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No. 141274W
Devendra Jain * | Parul Rana Bhavna Mehta

Partner ; Director Director
Membership No. 159228 N DIN No. 07546822 DIN No. 0754673
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 05 September 2022 Date: 05 September 2022



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)
Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 18,434.76 7,091.92
Other income 20 80.08 16.87
Total 18,514.84 7,108.80
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 13,936.97 5,662.56
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2 144.16 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 23 (41.23) 4242
Employee benefits expense 24 386.10 253.17
Finance costs 25 109.35 8.44
Depreciation and amortization expense 1" 3848 20.90
Other expenses 26 1,754.89 591.77
Total 16,328.73 6,579.26
Profit / (Loss) before tax 2,186.11 529.54
Tax expenses
Current tax 595.58 144,50
Deferred tax (5.46) 1.96
Profit | (Loss) after tax 1,595.98 383.08
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each
Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 27 151.62 51.28
Significant Accouting Policies 1
Accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral 21041
part of financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For D. Y. & Associates Platinum Industries Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No. 141274W

Devendra Jain Parul Rana Bhavna Mehta
Partner Director Diractor
Membership No. 159228 DiN No. 07546822 DIN No. 0754673
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 05 September 2022 “ Dale: 05 September 2022



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC 341637
Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from operg activities

Net Profit before taxation 2,186.11 529.54
Adjustments for:
Depraciation on property plant & equipment 3848 20.90
Loss on sale of assets 484 305
Interest income (13.81) (2.68)
Interest expense 88.76 6.06
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,304.00 §57.00
Adjustments for ;
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (951.12) 185.54
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (2,911.57) 67.08
(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances (669.26) (48.93)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (97.44) 913
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable 858.39 446.82
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions 3210 -
Increase/(Decrease) in short-term provisions (6.77) (15.07)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilties 211.75 (872.15)
Cash generated from operations (1,230.00) 329.00
Direct taxes paid (340.15) (159.92)
Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from operating activities (1,570.00) 169.00
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (124.13) (161.27)
Sales of property plant and equipment - 16.25
Capital work in progress capilalized during the year 1.78 (27.79)
Investment in fixed deposit (385.02) (26.02)
Purchase of investments (2.00) -
Long term loans & advances (given)/taken (29.21) 750
Interest received 13.81 2.68
Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Investing activities (525.00) (189.00)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest expenses (88.76) (6.06)
Proceeds from share capital - 526
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 533.27 (71.09)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,564.78 31.01
Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Financing activities 2,009.29 (40.88)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (85.15) (60.17)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash in hand 6.64 4.63
Bank balances B8.11 150.29
= 94.76 154.93
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9.61 94.76
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
in Lakhs)

Notes :
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year consists of cash in hand and balances with banks are as follows:

Note 2:
The Company has used Indirect method for preparation of Cash flow statement in accordance with Accounting Standard-3.

Note 3:
During the previous year, the company has been formed by conversion of LLP as on 09th July, 2020.The cash flow statement of company for

previous year has been prepared from 09th July, 2020 till 31st March, 2021. Refer Note no.41 to the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ForD. Y. & Associates Platinum Industries Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No. 141274W

R Ml
endra Jain Parul Rana Bhavna Mehta

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 159228 ; DIN No. 07546822 DIN No. 0754673
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 05 September 2022 Date: 05 September 2022



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
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Note 1 : Significant Accounting Policies:

1

i)
i)

i)

v)

ii)

i)

)

Corporate Information

Platinum Industries Private Limited (Company) is a Private Limited Company registered under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, The company carries out a business of manufacturers, processors/Job Work, refiners, extractors, exporters, importers and
dealers in Industrial chemicals and PVC chemicals and Waxes.

Basis of Accounting:

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on an accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India and comply with the Accounting Standards Specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounling Principles requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between actual results and
estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialize,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Domestic sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and the rewards of ownership of the goods are passed
Export sales is recognised on shipment of products.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable

Service charges are recognised as and when it becomes due as per the terms of contract.

Inventory
Inventories are valued at cost or market value,whichever is lower

Foreign Currency Transactions :
The transactions in foreign currencies are stated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of fransactions.

The difference on account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction and the date of realization is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Differences on translations of Current Assets and Current Liabilities remaining unsettled at the year-end are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The premium in respect of forward exchange contract is amortised over the life of the contract. The net gain or loss on account of any
exchange difference, cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange confracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Property Plant and Equipment

Property Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for intended use.




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
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iii)

Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Depreciation
Depreciation on the Property Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method as per the useful life specified in Schedule Il
of The Companies Act, 2013, in the manner stated therein.

Impairment of Assets

In accordance with AS-28 on “Impaimment of Assets", issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India, notified under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, where there is any indication of impaiment of the company's assets related to cash
generating units, the camying amounts of such assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
impairment. The recoverable amount of such assets is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of such assets exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earning Per Share

Basic Eaming per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year atributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Accounting for Taxes of Income:-
Current Taxes

Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income- tax Act, 1961 and is made annually
based on the tax liability after taking credit for lax allowances and exemptions.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable lo timing differences that result between
the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial stalements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax Assets are
recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in the future. Deferred Tax Assets are
reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized in terms of Accounting Standard 29- “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, when there is
a present legal or statutory obligation as a result of past events where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or where refiable estimate of the
obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed by way of notes.
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 3 : Resewes ang surplus

Opening balance 383.08 -
Add: Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,585.98 383.08
TOTAL 1,979.06 383.08

R o March 31, 2021
Secured loans
Vehicle Loans From Banks & Financial Institutions 61.90 83.66
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (11.70) (14.86
50.20 ﬂ'ﬁl
Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits ( From Related Party) 1,568.37 -
inter-Corporate Deposits (From Others) 56.50 41.50
TOTAL 1,675.08 110.30

Vehicle loans from Banks & Financial Institutions
Vehicle Loan from BMW Financial Services amounting to Rs.52.43 lakhs (PY Rs.59.45 lakhs) carries interest rate @ 9.90% p.a.. The loan
secured by car financed.The tenure of loan is of 48 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from March 2021,

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. 9.47 lakhs (PY Rs. 13.07 lakhs) carries interest rate @ 9.15% p.a.. The loan is secured
by car financed.The tenure of loan is of 55 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from December 2019,

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. Nili- (PY Rs. 7.59 lakhs ) carries interest rate @ 9.15% p.a.. The loan is secured by car
financed. The tenure of loan is of 60 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from August 2018.

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. Nili- (PY Rs. 3.55 lakhs ) carries interest rate @ 9.15% p.a.. The loan is secured by car
financed. The tenure of loan is of 60 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from December 2019.

Intercorporate Deposit
Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs 56,50 lakhs (Rs. 41.50 lakhs) is interest free loan. The Loan is unsecured in nature and repayable after 31st
March, 2023.

Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs 1,568.37 lakhs (PY Rs. Nil) carries interest rate of 6.5% p.a. The Loan is unsecured in nature and repayable
after 31st March, 2023.

¥




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Lakhs)
Note 5 : Deferred tax liability
The major components of deferred tax (assets) / liability as recongised in the financial statement is as follows:
i - . : March 31,2022 |  March 31,2021
Deferred tax (liabilities) arising on account of timing difference in:
Excess of net block of Property, Plant & Equipments for books of
accounts over net block for income tax purpose 22.15 18.00
Less : Deferred tax Assets arising on account of timing difference in:
Gratuity (9.60) -
TOTAL (Net) 12.54 18.00

Provisions for gratuity 38.16
Less: Current portion of gratuity (6.05)
TOTAL 32.10
3 B iR essy, L e
rch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Secured
Cash credit facility from bank 737.38 -
Current Maturities of Long-term Debt 1.70 14.86
Unsecured Loans
From Directors - 085
Unsecured Loan
Inter Corporate Deposit 041 20041

749.49 216.21
Cash credit facility

Cash Credit Facility from Bank of Maharashtra amounting to Rs.737.38 lakhs /-(PY Rs .Nill-) carries interest rate of 8.80% p.a. The Credit
facility is Secured by hypothecation of Raw Materials, Stock In Process, Finished Goods, Books Debts,and mortgage of Bunglow No. 31,
Building type E 11, Dariyalal CHS, Silver Sand Bunglows, Juhu Tara Road, Juhu, Mumbai 400 049, personal guarantee of directors of the
company and FOR of Rs 320 |akhs as collateral.

Loans from Directors

Loans from Directors of Rs. Nil (PY 0.95 lakhs) is interest free loan. The Loans are unsecured in nature and repayable on demand.

Intercorporate Deposit
Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs. 0.41 lakhs (PY Rs 200.41 lakhs) carries interest rate @ 12% p.a. The Loans are unsecured in nature and
repayable on demand,

® Phavyng. R-mehay




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Lakhs)
Note 7 (A) :
The following is the summary of the differences between Current Assets declared with Bank of
Maharashtra and as per Audited financial statements as at 31.03.2022:

Inventory _ ST 154890 | 14140
Trade Receivable 458278 424402 33878
Trade Payable ( For Raw Materials) 2,187.95 1,809.34 37861

Note : The statement of current assets and liabilities submitted with bank was on the basis of unaudited
financials. Differences were mainly due lo subsequent accounting and reconciliation related to year ended
31st March, 2022,



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24289MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 8 : Trade payables
- _ i i March31,2022 |  March 31, 2021
Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises” 156.55 -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,682.77 1,980.93
TOTAL 2,839.32 1,980.93

*Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition
of micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2022 has been made based on the information available with
the Company.The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under this Act. The information has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors have placed reliance on such

information provided by the Management.

& N T Asat ! Asat
_ e | March3t 2022 | marchsi 20z
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year, 156.55 -
The interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year, &
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of

the payment made to the supplier beyond the due date during each accounting year, &

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but|

interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid); :

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of -

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

Interest paid or payable by the Company on the aforesaid principal amount has been waived by the concerned suppliers.

Note 9 : O_ther current liabilities _ _ :

e T e T
Statutory dues payable 139.04 17.63
Salary payable 25.77 2843
Interest payable 53.13 -
Advance From cusiomer 62.84 22.97
TOTAL 280.78 69.03

: Short rovisions
Hote 10 Shortlerm provone e T “hsat

2 1] SN or s, T otk SOTIAR WA March 31, 2021
|Provision for employee benefits =
Provisions for gratuity 6.05 -
Provision for expenses 38.15
Provision for tax (Net of Advance Tax & TDS) 387.81
TOTAL 432.02
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 12 : Non-Current Investments
As at As at
st March31,2022 |  March 31, 2021
Investment in Equity Shares - Unquoted ( Share Of Rs 10/- each ) - Subsidiary
Company
19,990 (P.Y.Nil ) Equity Shares Of Platinum Global Additives Pvt. Ltd. 200 -
TOTAL 200 -
Note 13: Long term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
¥ 4 TR N T e e
) March 31,2022 |  March 31, 2021
VAT refund receivable - 3.04
Advance against Land * 56.43 26.01
Security deposits 2840 26.57
TOTAL 84.83 55.62
* includes stamp duty and registration charges
Note 14 : Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable Value)
Pl March 31,2022 |  March 31,2021
Raw materials 1,361.63 451.34
Work in progress 12.37 1277
Finished goods 132.52 133,67
Stock in Trade 4238 -
TOTAL 1,548.90 597.78
Note 15 : Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good) _
= g S L
G March 31,2022 |  March 31, 2021
Due for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment 69.12 34.99
Other debts 4.513.66 1,636.23
TOTAL 4,582.78 1,671.21




Yy w <Y F YA

&

pautedu) ipaid -saiqeAieda. apes pajndsiq [
¥SU )P Ul 8sesIoul JuedyiuBis arey yojym -sejqenisos) spey pandsiq (9

. 120ZE0'}E 18 SY

paJfeduw| ipaJo -se|genisal epex pandsiq

Sl 1paua Uy esessoul Jueoylubls arey Yolym -sejqenieas) spesj peindsiq (@
pooB pasepisuco -sejgenoa) apes pajndsig (p

paiiedul ype.o -sejqenisasl apes) pejndsipun (o

S Jipaso Ul eseasoul Jueoyjubis sney yoiym -ssjqensoss apes) paindsipun (q
pooB pasepisuco -s8|qenisoa apex) pajndsipun (e

81785y _lae

S8|qeAi20ay apei : y5| sloN

(syxe7 uy junoury) 2202 V€ Youel papus Jeak ay) Joj syuawaless (eioueul oy) 0f sejou BuAuBdWoIDY
LEQLPEDLAOZOZHINGBZFZN - NID
pajwi|T jeAld selisnpu| wnupeld



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

Cash & cash equivalents

Balances with banks :

Cash in hand 291 6.64
Bank deposits with less than 12 months maturity* 411.04 26.02
TOTAL 420.64 120.78

“includes Rs. 54.701akhs (PY Rs. Ni) hed a5 margin money against bank quararios
*includes Rs. 360 lakhs (PY Rs. Nil) as collateral to Bank of Maharashtra




CIN - U24299MH2020PTC 341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

~18,416.08
18,68
18.434.76

18,416.08
18,416.08 7,08013

on am fluctuation
Interest Income

46411

14,846.86 ,519.
15,310.97 6,126.67
Less: Closing stock of raw materials 1,361.63 451.34
Less: Closing stock of WIP 12.37 12.77
13,936.97 5,662.56
Details of Raw Material Consumed
Industrial Chemical & related products 13,936.97 5,662.56
TOTAL 13,936.97 5,662.56

Note 22 : Purchases of Stock-in-Trade




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

Finished goods 133.67 176.09
133.67 176.09

|Closing stock™

Finished goods 132,52 133.67

Stock in trade 42.38 -
174.90 133.67

TOTAL (41.23) 4242

temwise details of changes in finished goods

Closing Stock of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade™
Industrial Chemical & related products 174.90 13367
TOTAL 174.90 133.67

Directors remuneration 72.00 60.75
Contribution to PF & other fund 4268 383
Staff welfare expenses 15.05 9.54
TOTAL 386.10 25317

Interest to bank 12.39 -
Interest on other loans
Interest To others -

Bhowvmu . - Mg




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

Freight, transportation & dlearing

Commissions 745.87 135.98
Legal & Professional fees 174.40 95.35
Sales promotion expenses 58.34 13.67
Travelling & conveyance 7147 2517
Electricity charges 38.93 24.66
Rent 59.64 47.76
Repairs & maintenance 40.04 13.59
Security charges 6.39 6.29
CSR expenditure 10.80 -

|Printing and stationery 5.50 378
Loss on sale of motor car - 3.05
Auditor's remuneration 3.96 1.50
Miscellaneous expenses 28.62 30.81
TOTAL 1,754.89 591.77

1,595.98 383.08
Weighted average number of equity shares 10,52,645 747,085
Basic Earnings Per Share _ 151.62 51.28
Diluted Earnings Per Share 151.62 51.28
Face value per Share ) 10 10

Phuvnu. - mehid




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 28 :

A) Related disclosures

a. List of related parties
[Name of the Party i Relations

Parul Rana Director

Bhavna Mehta Director

Krishna Rana Relative of Director

Dushyant Rana Relative of Director

Rahul Mehta Relative of Director

Platinum Global Additives Private Limited

DBR Plastics Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises over which Key Management
Personnel and their relatives exercise

DBR Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. significant influence or control
b. Transactions with related parties :
T T W sy A A G L e ey AT m 'm &2 m : 357
Loan taken - 572.82
Parul Rana Loan repaid 0.95 573.77
Remuneration 72,00 54,00
Share Capital - 99.99
Share Capital - 0.01
Remuneralion - 6.75
Siawia Mt Loan taken : 5721
Loan repaid - 57.21
Purchases 167.48 -
; Sales 96.00
DBR Plastics Pvt. Ltd. p 156837
Interest on Loan 55.18 -
Loan Given 44.75 25.07
Platinum Global Additives Private Limited et o own L :
Sales 1,379.18 -
Loan repaid 25.00 -
DBR Chemicals Pvl. Ltd, Purchases 17.17 -
Dushyant Rana Salary 12.00 12.00
Krishna Rana Salary 6.00 5.50
Rahul Mehta Salary 3.96 2.7
c. Balance Outstanding of related parties :
Parul Rana Payable -
DBR Plastics Pvt. Ltd. Payable 1,568.37
DBR Plastics Pvt. Ltd. Payable 144,72 -
Platinum Global Additives Private Limitad Receivable 820.01 -
Platinum Global Additives Private Limited Receivable 44 82 25.07




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 29 : In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and advances are approximately of the value stated in the balance sheet if
realized in the ordinary course of the business and the provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount considered

reasonably necessary.

Note 30 : Some of the balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Loans and Advances [given/taken) are subject to confirmations from the
respective parties and reconciliations / adjustments arising there from, if any.

Note 31 : Contingent Liabilities

a) Bank Guarantee 364.67 -
b) Capital Commitment (against land) 740.19 765.00
TOTAL 1,104.85 765.00

Note 32 :Information pursuant to para 5(viii) of the General Instructions to the Statement of Profit and Loss
a). Value of on C.LF Basis:

Stock in Trade -
TOTAL 5,643.93 918.28

(b). Eamings in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

ﬁ/LLuVm R et




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

Payable 84.21 281 236.35

currency outstanding on the ended March 31, 2021

Receivable 7350 2.20 162.05
Payable 86.10 0.32 27.31

Note33: Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard - 15 ‘Employee Benefits’

Growth o 1000%

Discount Rate 6.86%
Expected Rate of Return 10.00%

* The estimales of future salary increases, considered in a actuarial valuation, takes account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

(i) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening
reof:

Interest cost 5
Current service cost 38.16
Benefits paid 2
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation -
Past Service Cost -
Closing Present value of obligation 38.16

(ii) Actuarial gain/ loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Actuarial gain/ (loss) fo the year obligation
|Total (gain) loss on Assets
|Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year.

®

Phavma: Q. ment



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Lakhs)

(iii) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year -

Funded value of assets (unfunded) =
Net (assets) / liability recognised in balance sheet 38.16

- Current 6.05
- Non - Current 32.10

(iv) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

nenlsawioecosl
Past service cost 4

Interest cost -
Expected return on plan assets -
Net actuarial (gain) /loss recognized in the year -
Expenses deducted from fund
Adjustment to Fund -
Expenmmcogn‘sedmmestatemenlofpmfaandbss 38.16

Note 34 : Segment Reporting: In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, the Company’s business
consists of one reportable business segment i.e. “Industrial Chemical & related products”, hence no separate disclosures pertaining to attributable
Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, Capital Employed are given.

Note 35: Disclosure with regards to section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
i) For investments : Refer Note 12
ii) For loans given :

Platinum Global Additives Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary-99.95%) 9.00 | Working Capital

Note 36: CSR expenditure
(a) Gross amount Required to be spent by the Company during the year Rs. 10.59 lakhs (PY Nil).
(b) Amount Spent during the year on CSR activities is Rs. 10,90 lakhs (PY Nil)

G



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 37 : The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

1|Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.76 1.07
2|Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 1.16 0.67
3|Debt Service Coverage Ratio Eamings available for debt  |Debt Service 18.48 23.09
service
4{Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s 1.24 1.57
Equity
5{Inventory Tumover Ratio Revenue Average Inventory 17.18 23.73
6| Trade receivables tumover ratic  |Revenue Average Trade 5.80 8.49
Receivable
7|Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases of services and  |Average Trade Payables 6.95 6.17
other expenses
8|Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital 567 40.69
9|Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.09 0.05
10|Return on capital employed Earning before interest and | Capital Employed 0.51 0.66
(ROCE) taxes
11|Return on Investment(ROI) Income generated from Time weighted average -
investments [investments

Note :

The Company was incorporated on 08th July 2020 (by conversion of LLP), accordingly the financials of previous year were
prepared from 09th July 2020 to 31st March 2021, hence previous period's ratios are not comparable.




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Lakhs)
Note 38 : Operating Leases
The company has entered into operating leases of certain premises,
The table below provides details regarding lease rent payables :
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
- Less than one year 62.22 59.64
- Later than one year but not later than five years 169.77 206.80
- Later than five years - 25.19

231.99 291.63

Note 39 : Additional regulatory Information required by schedule Il to the companies act, 2013

1 The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

2 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or govemment or any government authority.

3 The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

4 Ulilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

I The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Il The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

5 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or
survey), thal has not been recorded in the books of account.

6 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

7 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 40 : Other Statutory Information as per Schedule IIl of the Companies Act 2013 is nat applicable, hence not disclosed,

Note 41 : The previous period's figures have been regrou
09th July 2020 (by conversion of LLP), accordingly the fin
previous period figures are not comparable.

ped / re-classified to confirm to this year's classification. The Company was incorporated on
ancials of previous year were prapared from 09th July 2020 to 31st March 2021, hence

Accompanying notes to the financial statements form an

integral part of financial statements, o
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Beard of Directors of
ForD.Y. & Associates

Platinum Industries Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No. 141274W

Qonda. o™

Parul Rana
Pariner Director
Membership No, 159228 DIN No. 07546822
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 05 September 2022 Date: 05 September 2022
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To the Members of Platinum Industries Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Platinum Industries Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated cash flows Statement the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as ‘the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31. 2022, and their consolidated profit
(including other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Board's Report, Report
on Corporate governance and Business Responsibility report but does not include the Consolidated
Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of
affairs (consolidated financial position) , consolidated profit or loss (Consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or o cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

®



influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

2. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
@



3.  We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure A.
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

There was no pending litigation which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group.

i. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies.

(a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such
subsidiary to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such subsidiary (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company or any of such subsidiary from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its
subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
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(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Since The Company has not declared / paid any dividend during the year,
Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

2. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, being a private
limited company provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to
the company.

3. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order’/ “CARQ") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information
and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company
and its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks in these CARO reports.

For D Y & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 141274W

Devendra Jain

Partner

Mem. No. : 159228

UDIN: 22159228BARPXW3193

Date: 05 September 2022
Place: Mumbai



Annexure “A” to the Indepenpdent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated financial
statements of Platinum Industries Private Limited for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Platinum Industries Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI") and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For DY & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 141274W 2

Ptundsg-

Devendra Jain

Partner

Mem. No. : 159228 Date : 05 September 2022
UDIN: 22159228BARPXW3193 Place : Mumbai



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC 341637
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Rs. In lakhs)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2 105.26
Reserves and Surplus 3 2,199.00
2,304.27
Minority Interest o1
Non-current liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings 4 1,675.08
Deffered Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 12,54
Long-Term Provisions 6 32.10
1,719.72
Current liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings 7 749.49
Trade Payables 8
i) Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises 156.55
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises 2,716.21
Other Current Liabilities 9 344 .65
Short-Term Provisions 10 517.76
4,484.64
Total 8,508.75
II. ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property Plant Equipment & Intangible Assets
- Tangible Assets 1 465.76
- Capital Work in Progress -

465.76
Goodwill on Consolidation 0.21
Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 84.83
85.04
Current assets
Inventories 13 1,548.90
Trade Receivables 14 5,024.13
Cash & Bank balances ' 15 42119
Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 825.24
Other Current Assets 17 138.49
7,957.95
Total § 8,508.75
Significant Accouting Policies 1
Accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of 21039
financial statements. !
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of/ .
For D. Y. & Associates Platinum Industries Private Limited =" (<7
Chartered Accountants S A
@!' E ﬂ, . W
Devendra Jain 14 Parul Rana
Partner ' Director
Membership No. 159228 /) DIN No. 07546822  DIN No. 0754673
Place: Mumbai N Place: Mumbai

Date: 05 September 2022 i Date: 05 September 2022



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

IRs.Inlakhsi

Revenue
Revenue from operations 18 18,815.56
Other income 19 78.78
Total 18,894.34
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20 13,936.97
Purchases of stock-in-trade 21 144.16
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 22 (41.23)
Employee benefits expense 23 399.33
Finance costs 24 109.35
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 38.48
Other expenses 25 1,816.29
Total 16,403.36
Profit before tax 2,490.98
Tax expenses
Current tax 680.40
Deferred tax (5.46)
674.95
Profit after tax before minority interest 1,816.03
Less : Minority Interest 0.1
Profit for the year 1,815.92
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each
Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 26 172.51
Significant Accouting Policies 1
Accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral 21039

part of financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date
For D. Y. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ouud¥-

Devendra Jain
Partner
Membership No. 159228

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05 September 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Platinum Industries Private Limited

Nopr?

M\um\ o -i

Parul Rana Bhavna Meh \\’5, B s
Director Director SRR
DIN No. 07546822 DIN No. 0754673 =
Place: Mumbali

Date: 05 September 2022



Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
?s. In lakhs,

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before prior period items & taxation 2,490.98
Adjustments for:

Depreciation on fixed assets 38.48
Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets 484
Interest income (12.51)
Interest Expense 88.76
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,610.56
Adjustments for :

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (951.12)
(Increase) / Decrease in frade receivables (3,352.92)
(Increase) / Decrease in advances and other assets (734.07)
Increasel(Decrease) in trade payable 891.83
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilties & provisions 255.03
Cash generated from operations (1,280.69)
Direct taxes paid (283.47)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,574.16)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property Plant and equipment (124.13)
Sales of Property Plant and equipment

Capital Work in Progress Gapitalized during the year 1.78
Acquisition of Subsidiary (2.00)
Long term loans & advances

Investment in fixed deposit (385.02)
Interest received 12.51
Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Investing activities ~ (4%.85)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest Expenses {88.76)
Proceeds from Share Capital

Proceeds from Borrowings 2,072.97
Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Financing activities 1,984.21
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (86.81)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 94.76
On Acquisition of Subsidiary 2.20
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year 10.15




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
in

Notes :
1.CashandCashEqui\ram&salmeenddlheyea'mnsislsdcashinhaﬂatﬁbdamesudﬁbanksareasfdws:

Note 2:
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in terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For D. Y. & Associates Platinum Industries Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637

Accompanying notes to the consolidated finanical statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 1 : Significant Accounting Policies:

1

Corporate Information

Platinum Industries Private Limited (Company) is a Private Limited Company registered under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The company carries out a business of manufacturers,
processors/Job Work, refiners, extractors, exporters, importers and dealers in Industrial chemicals and
PVC chemicals and Waxes.

Basis of Accounting:

a) The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on an accrual
basis of accounting and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India and
comply with the Accounting Standards Specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

b) Principles of Consolidation:
The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to the Company and and its Associate which have been
prepared on the following basis:

i) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the balances of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure after
fully eliminating the intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profit or
loss in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements.

ii) The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiaries over its portion of equity of
subsidiaries at the dates they become subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as goodwill
on consolidation.

iii) The excess of Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiaries over the cost to the Company of its
investments at the dates they become subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as capital
reserve on consolidation.

iv) Investment in associates where the Company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more

than 20% of equity, are accounted for using equity method as per Accounting Standard 23 — Accounting
for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements.

Qe o\ :




Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
Accompanying notes to the consolidated finanical statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

v) The Company accounts for its share in the change in the net assets of the associates, post-
acquisition, after eliminating unrealized profits and losses resulting from fransactions between the
Company and its associates to the extent of its share, through its Statement of Profit and Loss to the
extent such change is aftributable to the associates' Statement of Profit and Loss and through its
reserves for the balance, based on the available information.

vi) The difference between the cost of investment in the associates and the share of net assets at the
time of acquisition of shares in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital Reserve as the case may be.

vii) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same
manner as the Company'’s separate financial statements.

3 Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between actual results and estimates are
recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialize.

4 Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue from Domestic sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and the rewards of

i) Export sales is recognised on shipment of products.

iy Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable

iv) Service charges are recognised as and when it becomes due as per the terms of contract.

5 Inventory
Inventories are valued at cost or market value, whichever is lower

6 Foreign Currency Transactions :

i)  The transactions in foreign currencies are stated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions.

i)  The difference on account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction and
the date of realization is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Platinum Industries Private Limited
CIN - U24299MH2020PTC341637
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iiiy Differences on translations of Current Assets and Current Liabilities remaining unsettled at the year-end
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) The premium in respect of forward exchange contract is amortised over the life of the contract. The net
gain or loss on account of any exchange difference, cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange
contracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

7  Property Plant and Equipment
Property Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working
condition for intended use.

8 Depreciation
Depreciation on the Property Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method as per the
useful life specified in Schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013, in the manner stated therein.

9 Impairment of Assets

In accordance with AS-28 on “Impairment of Assets”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, where there is any indication of
impairment of the company’s assets related to cash generating units, the carrying amounts of such
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any impairment. The
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use.
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of such assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

10 Earning Per Share

Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

11 Accounting for Taxes of Income:-
Current Taxes
Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income- tax
Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and
exemptions.
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Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing
differences that result between the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax Assets are
recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in the future.
Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized in terms of Accounting Standard 29- “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, when there is a present legal or statutory obligation as a result of past events where
it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the company or where reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed
on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

i) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed by way of notes.
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(Rs. In lakhs)
Note 2 : Share capital
a. Details of Authorised, Issued and Subscribed Share Capital
Particulars | March 31, 2022
Authorised Capital
10,53,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 105.30
Iss i nd Paid
10,52,645 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1056.26

105.26

b. Terms & Conditions

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitied

fo one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by

the shareholders.

c. Details of shares held by promoter
As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares at | No. of shares at |
Particulars the beginning of | the end of the
the year year
Parul Rana 9,99,800 9,99,900
Bhavna R Mehta 100 100
Total 10,00,000 10,00,000
There are no change in shares held by promoters during the year
d. Shareholders having more than 5 % shareholding .
IS e i) ERESTE e A __As at March 31, 2022
Name of Shareholder Noof Equiy [ .
Parul Rana 9,99,800 0.95

e Reconciliation_ of number of shares

Shares outstanding al the beginning of the year

Shares Issued during the year*

Shares redeemed during the year

Total

10,52,645

*During the previous year, Fixed capital of LLP of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- was converted to
share capital at time of conversion of LLP to company.
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Note 3 : Reserves and surplus
e e N N T R R I L

Surplus as per Statement of Profit & Loss

Opening balance 383.08
Add: Net Profit{Loss) for the year 1,815.92
TOTAL 2,199.00
Secured loans

Vehicle Loans From Banks & Financial Institutions 61.90

Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (11.70)

Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits 1,624.87

TOTAL 1,675.08

Vehicle loans from Banks & Financial Institutions

Vehicle Loan from BMW Financial Services amounting to Rs.52.43 lakhs/- (PY Rs.59.45 lakhs) carries interest rate ranging at
9.90%. The loan is secured by car financed.The tenure of loan is of 48 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from
March 2021.

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. 9.47 lakhs (PY Rs. 13.07 lakhs) carries interest rate ranging at 9.15%. The
loan is secured by car financed. The tenure of loan is of 55 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from December
2019.

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. Nil/- (PY Rs. 7.59 lakhs) carries interest rate ranging at 9.15%. The loan is
secured by car financed. The tenure of loan is of 60 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from August 2018,

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. Nill- (PY Rs. 3.55 lakhs) carries interest rate ranging at 9.15%. The loan is
secured by car financed. The tenure of loan is of 60 months. Repayment of the loan has commenced from December 2019.

Intercorporate Deposit
Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs 56.50 lakhs (Rs. 41.50 lakhs) is interest free loan, The Loan is unsecured in nature and repayable
after 31st March, 2023.

Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs 1568.37 lakhs (PY Rs. Nil) carries interest rate of 6.5% p.a. The Loan is unsecured in nature and
repayable after 31st March, 2023,

Note 5 : Deferred tax liability
The major components of deferred tax (assets) / liability as recongised in the financial statement is as follows:

M | March 31, 2022

Deferred tax (liabilities) arising on account of timing difference in:

Excess of nel block of Property,Plant & Equipments for books of accounts over net block
for income tax purpose 22,15

Less : Deferred tax Assets arising on account of timing difference in:
Gratuity (9.60)

TOTAL (Net) 12.54
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(Rs. In lakhs)
Provisions for Gratuity
Less: Current portion of gratuity
TOTAL 32.10
Note 7 : Short term borrowings
Secured
Cash credit facility from bank 737.38
Current Maturities of Long term Debt 11.70
Unsecured Loans
From Directors -
Unsecured Loan
Inter Corporate Deposit 0.41

749.49

Cash credit facility

Cash Credit Facility from Bank of Maharashira amounting to Rs.737.38 lakhs (PY Rs .Nil/-) carries interest rate of 8.80% p.a. The
Credit facility is Secured by hypothecation of Raw Materials, Stock In Process, Finished Goods, Books Debts,and mortgage of
Bunglow No. 31, Building type E 11, Dariyalal CHS, Silver Sand Bunglows, Juhu Tara Road, Juhu, Mumbai 400 049, personal
guaraniee of directors of the company and FDR of Rs 320 lakhs as collateral.

Loans from Directors
Loans from Directors of Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 0.95 lakhs) is interest free loan. The Loans are unsecured in nature and repayable on
demand.

Intercorporate Deposit
Inter-corporate Deposit of Rs. 0.41 Iakhs (PY Rs 200.41 lakhs) carries interest rate @ 12% p.a. The Loans are unsecured in
nature and repayable on demand.

Note 8 : Trade payables

WE LA : ! Wi . | march31,2022
Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises* 156.55
Qther than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,716.21
TOTAL 2,872.75

*Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the
definition of micro and small enlerprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2022 has been made based on the
information available with the Company.The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under this Act.
The information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. Auditors have placed reliance on such information provided by the Management.

®
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(Rs. In lakhs)

Note 7 (A) :
The following s the summary of the differences between Current Assets declared with Bank of Maharashtra and

as per Audited financial statements as at 31.03.2022:

T hs perBatnce [ asperstoak | e

Inventory 1,548.90 1,407 51 141.40
Trade Receivable 4,582.78 4,244.02 338.76
Trade Payable  For Raw Materials) 2,187.95 1,809.34 378.61

Note : The statement of current assets and liabilities submitted with bank was on the basis of unaudited financials.
Differences were mainly due to subsequent accounting and reconciliation related to year ended 31st March, 2022,
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The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year;
The interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year; a
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2008 along with the amounts of the payment|
|made to the supplier beyond the due date during each accounting year, -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid bul interest under
the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid);

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and

[The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
|expenditure under section 23. |

Interest paid or payable by the Company on the aforesaid principal amount has been waived by the concerned suppliers.
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Note 13 : Inventories
Vatlmu!nrnetmalsdﬁa\!alm

Due for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Other debts 4,956.02
5,024.13

& cash oquahntl -
Balances with banks
- Current account 725
- Fixed Deposits * 411.04
Cash in hand 291
TOTAL 42119

*includes Rs. 54.70 lakhs (PY Rs. Nil) lien against bank guarantee
* includes Rs. 360.00 lakhs (PY Rs. Nil) as collateral to Bank of Maharashtra

Balance with Statutory / Govt Authority 8265
Duty Drawback receivabe 1220
Other current assels f 4175
[roTaL
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Less: Closing stock of raw materials
Less: Closing stock of WIP
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stocc

Finished goods 133.67
133.67

Closing stock**

Finished goods 13252

Stock in Trade 42.38
174.90

TOTAL (41.23)

Opening Stock of Finished Goods *
Industrial Chemical & related products 133.67
TOTAL 133.67

Itemwise details of changes in finished goods
Closing Stock of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade**
Industrial Chemical & related products

TOTAL 174.90

Interest to Bank 12.39
* | Interest on Other Loans
Interest To Others
Other Borrowing charges
TOTAL -
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Note 25 : Other
Im hrpeteins March 31, 2022
Freight, Transportation & Clearing 526.79
Commissions 77287
Legal & Professional Fees 190.54
Sales Promotion expenses 58.34
Travelling & conveyance 72.15
Eleclricity charges 38.93
Rent 59.64
Repairs & maintenance 40.15
Security Charges 5.39
CSR Expenditure 10.90
Printing and Stationery 5.50
Loss on sale of motor car -
Auditor's remuneration 4.46
Miscellaneous expenses 30.63
TOTAL 1,816.29
Auditors remuneration :
As Auditor 2.50
For Company Law matter -
For taxation matter 0.50
For Other services 1.46
TOTAL 4.46
Note 26 : Earnings ui =
Basic Earnings per Share
Profit/{Loss) atfributable to equity shareholders 1,815.92
Weighted average number of equity shares 10,52,645
Basic Earnings Per Share 172.51
Diluted Earnings Per Share 172.51
Face value per Share 10.00
Note 27 :
A) Related party disclosures
a. List of related parties L,
Parul Rana Director
Bhavna Mehta Director
Krishna Rana Relative of Director
Dushyant Rana Relative of Director
Rahul Mehta Relative of Director
Enterprises over
which Key
Management
relatives exercise
significant influence or
DBR Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. control
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Loan repaid 0.95
Remuneration 72.00
Purchases 167.48
Sales 96.00
DBR Plastics Pvt. Ltd. et in 156837
Interest on Loan 55.18
DBR Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. Purchases 17.17
Dushyant Rana Salary 12.00
Krishna Rana Salary 6.00
Rahul Mehta Salary 3.96

DBR Plastics PVt Ltd ' — |Payable 1,668.37
DBR Plastics Pvi. Lid. Payable : 144.72

Note 28 : In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assels, Loans and advances are approximately of the value stated in
the balance sheel if realized in the ordinary course of the business and the provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in
excess of amount considered reasonably necessary.

Note 29 : Some of the balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Loans and Advances [given/taken] are subject to
confirmations from the respective parties and reconciliations / adjustments arising there from, if any.

Note 30 : Contingent Liabilities

2) Bank Guarantee ' o ) 34,67
{b) Capital Commitment (against lend) a 74019
|TOTAL 1,104.85
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Note 31 :Information pursuant to para 5(viii) of the General Instructions to the Statement of Profit and Loss
a). Value of | on C.LF Basis:

Raw Materials 5,643.93
Stock in Trade -
TOTAL 5,643.93

(b). Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

Export on F.0.B basis 1,196.15

TOTAL 1,196.15

Receivable 75.90 31 .585 235,73
Payable 84.21 2,80,670 236.35

Note32: Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard - 15 'Employee Benefits’

10.00%
Discount Rale 6.86%
Expected Rate of Return 10.00%

* The estimales of future salary increases, considered in a actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

WD)
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[|] Changes in the present value _of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation oioprgning and closing balances thereof:

ar ) : 34st March, 2022
Present value of obligation as al the beginning of the year: -
Interest cost &
Current service cost 38.16
Benefits paid :
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation -
Past Service Cost -
Closing Present value of obligation 38.16
(ii) Actuarial gain/ loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Actuarial gain/ (Joss) for the year obligation -
Total (gain)/ loss on Assets -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year. ) i
(iii) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

TR { Al

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 38.16
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year -
Funded value of assets (unfunded) -
Net (assets) / liability recognised in balance sheet 38.16
- Current 6.05
- Non - Current 32.10
(iv) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Current service cost 38.16
Past service cost -
Interest cost -
Expected return on plan assels -
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year -
Expenses deducled from fund

Adjustment lo Fund -
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 38.16

Note 33 : Segment Reporting: In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reparting”, the
Company's business consists of one reportable business segment i e. “Industrial Chemical & related products’, hence no
separate disclosures pertaining to aftributable Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, Capital Employed are given.

®
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(Rs. In lakhs)

Note 34: CSR expenditure

(a) Gross amount Required to be spent by the Company during the year Rs. 10.59 lakhs (PY Ni).

(b) Amount Spent during the year on CSR activities is Rs. 10.90 lakhs (PY Nil)

Note 35 : Operating Leases

The company has entered into operating leases of certain premises.

The table below provides details regarding lease renl payables :

Particulars 31st March 2022

- Less than one year 62.22

- Later than one year but not later than five years 168.77

- Later than five years -
231.99

Note 36 : Additional regulatory Information required by schedule |l to the companies act, 2013

1 The Group does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against
the Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.

2 The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or govemnment or any
government authority,

3 The Group has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

4 Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

I The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entify(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guaraniee, security or the like fo or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Il The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entifies idenfified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

5 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

& The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

7 The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet fo be registered with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period. )

¢ .
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Note 37A : Companies considered in the consolidated financial statement are:

% Voting Power
Country of Date of
Name of Company . held
Incorporation Acquisition As on 31.03.2022
Subsidiary
Platinum Global Additives Private Limited India 12.04.2021 99.95%

Note 37B : Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Company and associate:

As at 31st March, 2022 Year ended 31st March, 2022
Net Assets Share in Profit or loss
Name of the Enterprises As % of As % off
Consolidated Net Net Assets Consolidated| Profit/ (Loss)
Assets Profit or Loss
Parent
Platinum Industries Private Limited 90.37 2,082.54 87.88 1,595.87
Subsidiaries
Platinum Global Additives Private Limited 962 ZNR 12.11 219.94
Minority Interest 0.00 0.11 0.01 0.1
100.00 2,304.38 100.00 | 1,815.92 |
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Note 38 : Other Statutory Information as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable, hence not disclosed.

Note 39 : Since the Company was not having any subsidiary / joint venture / associate during the previous year, Consolidated
Financial Statements for the previous year has not been presented.

Accompanying notes fo the financial statements form an integral

part of financial statements, %
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